1959

Union Pacific Railroad Co et al v. Public Service Commission of Utah et al : Brief of Petitioners

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On December 31, 1958, Barton Truck Line, Inc., made application to the Public Service Commission of Utah seeking authority to transport commodities generally, with certain

exceptions, over regular routes between Ogden and Salt Lake City, Utah, and to render local service to all intermediate points and places, including but not limited to, Hill Field, Ogden Arsenal and Clearfield Naval Supply Depot. Hearing was had and the Commission, under date of April 16, 1959, issued its order granting said authority. Applications for rehearing, filed by Union Pacific Railroad Company, Union Pacific Motor Freight Company and Consolidated Freightways, Inc., were denied, and upon petition of said carriers on June 26, 1959, a writ of review was issued and is now before this Court for review of the proceedings and order of the Commission as entered on April 16, 1959.

For purposes of brevity, the Public Service Commission of Utah will be referred to as "Commission," Union Pacific Railroad Company as "Union Pacific," Union Pacific Motor Freight Company as "Motor Freight," Consolidated Freightways, Inc., as "Consolidated," Wasatch Fast Freight as "Wasatch" and Barton Truck Line, Inc., as "Barton."

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Prior to the Commission's order of April 16, 1959, general commodity transportation service for intrastate traffic between Salt Lake City and Ogden, was being handled by Union Pacific, by its wholly owned subsidiary truck line, Motor Freight, and by Wasatch, a division of Consolidated.

Union Pacific has offered rail service between Salt Lake and Ogden for many years. Rail stations are located at Ogden, Clearfield, Layton, Kaysville, Woods Cross, North Salt Lake

and Salt Lake City (R. 690, 695). Through its truck line, Motor Freight, it provides pick-up and delivery service to each of these communities. Service at Clearfield includes the Naval Supply Depot, Hill Air Force Base and Ogden Arsenal; at Woods Cross it includes the business district of Bountiful (R. 691). Local service for general commodities is offered each direction daily except Sunday on a schedule out of Ogden at 5:30 a.m. and out of Salt Lake City at 12 noon, with set outs at all stations (R. 449, 454). Each evening two north-bound schedules from Salt Lake City provide LCL box car service for Ogden Traffic (R. 451).

On or about June 3, 1958, the Commission granted authority to Motor Freight for the transportation of LCL general commodity freight in coordination with Union Pacific on all highways paralleling the rails in the state. Traffic is handled by rail personnel, on rail billing, and pick-up and discharge of freight is limited to points constituting rail stations of the Union Pacific. There was, however, no restriction in the volume of traffic Motor Freight could move thereunder. Motor Freight operates two schedules per day each way between Salt Lake City and Ogden. Under normal circumstances the schedule calls for next morning delivery; however, same day service can be arranged through the dispatcher (R. 703, 706). Equipment is seldom used to full capacity (R. 702).

Bamberger Railroad Company, which provided rail service for general commodities between Salt Lake City and Ogden for many years, terminated business on December 31, 1958 (R. 446). Effective January 1, 1959, Union Pacific purchased Bamberger's northern transportation facilities from Ogden to

Arsenal, Utah, where connection is made with Union Pacific's main line. Service on the trackage acquired from Bamberger, called the Hill Field Branch Line, is daily, except Sunday (R. 447, 454).

On December 12, 1957, Consolidated acquired the Utah intrastate rights and equipment of Fuller-Toponce Truck Company (R. 583). Operation thereof was placed under Wasatch, a division of Consolidated, and service under all certificates transferred from Fuller-Toponce including local service for general commodities between Salt Lake City and Ogden and all intermediate points commenced at that time (R. 584).

Promptly upon acquisition of this authority Consolidated entered into an extensive study regarding the method by which adequate and proper service could best be performed (R. 615). As a result, and to improve service, Consolidated caused a new terminal building to be erected at Ogden at a cost of \$186,000. Construction commenced in April of 1958, and was completed and placed in use on August 23, 1958 (R. 594). An equipment study and reappraisal commenced in July, 1958, and was completed the following November. It was concluded that the equipment being employed was not suitable for the most expeditious service. Therefore, the purchase of an entirely new and more versatile fleet of road equipment was approved as a part of the budget in January, 1959, and the actual purchase was made on February 6, 1959. This acquisition, involving 30 new tractors and 50 trailers, committed an expenditure of \$310.00 (R. 617-622, 677). The new equipment is designed for use in both pick-up and road

haul. Two loaded pick-up trailers will be hooked directly to a road unit for the line haul without unloading and transfer at the origin terminal (R. 622). This will allow the retirement of the present double fleet and will lessen operating expenses (R. 618).

Revenues and expenses of the Wasatch division are segregated and the results for the operation of the year 1958 showed a loss of \$92,582 due primarily to an average increase in hourly wages of a contractual employees of 23.7 per cent over the year 1957 (R. 589).

Wasatch maintains a pick-up and delivery fleet at Salt Lake City and Ogden, each consisting of 15 truck van units, 15 trailers and 6 to 8 tractors. It operates an average of 12 to 16 trailers daily each direction between Salt Lake City and Ogden together with 2 peddle schedules daily from Salt Lake City to Layton and 1 daily from Ogden to Clearfield (R. 597-599). If a call is received by 11:00 a.m. and pick-up is made before 12 noon, the shipment goes out on a daily noon schedule for afternoon delivery in Ogden in 95 per cent of said shipments (R. 600, 601). A complete dock cleanup takes place each evening for shipments picked up that day (R. 604).

There is no conflict on the foregoing facts in the record.

Barton's case to justify duplication of the common carrier authority in the area involved was primarily an attack upon the service offered by Wasatch. Testimony was carefully elicited from 16 of the 17 shipper witnesses called by Barton tending in one way or another to discredit Wasatch. From an examination of the record, it appears that the majority of the

complaints were without real substance or were characterized as occasional (R. 57-58, 65; 148-149, 155, 159-160; 185-189, 192-196, 201-205; 242-247, 249; 257-259, 264-265; 280-281, 285; 290-295, 298, 304, 305, 308-9, 312; 315, 325-326; 382-384, 389; 398-400, 407-409), or were immaterial or hearsay (R. 137-141; 168-169, 171-172). It is conceded that there was room for improvement in the Wasatch service. However, to place the matter in proper perspective, Wasatch presented an analysis of its 1958 claim experience. It handled 144,881 shipments and received 1063 claims, for a 99.27 per cent claim free record for the year's operation (R. 611, Ex. 49). The Wasatch manager, who was uncontroverted, testified that 50 per cent of the claims filed were for concealed damage which could have occurred on the inbound movement, and that the record was a good one for a short haul carrier (R. 614).

STATEMENT OF POINTS

POINT I

THE COMMISSION ARBITRARILY, UNNECESSARILY AND WITHOUT SUFFICIENT COMPETENT EVIDENCE, DUPLICATED COMMON CARRIER SERVICE FOR GENERAL COMMODITIES IN THE AREA INVOLVED.

POINT II

IN ISSUING ITS ORDER IN THIS CASE BASED UPON THE RETIREMENT OF BAMBERGER RAILROAD COMPANY, THE COMMISSION ARBITRARILY IGNORED THE ACQUISITION OF BAMBERGER'S INTERESTS BY THE UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD COMPANY.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE COMMISSION ARBITRARILY, UNNECESSARILY AND WITHOUT SUFFICIENT COMPETENT EVIDENCE, DUPLICATED COMMON CARRIER SERVICE FOR GENERAL COMMODITIES IN THE AREA INVOLVED.

It is fully appreciated by petitioners that the Commission "is vested with broad powers and its decisions and orders are endowed with considerable verity." *Lake Shore Motor Coach Lines, Inc., vs. Welling*, Utah 2d., 339 P. 2d 1011, 1013 (1959). Nevertheless, it is required to pay heed to certain recognized principles in its determination of whether a carrier should be allowed to enter the area served by existing carriers. Section 54-6-4 Utah Code Annotated, 1953, imposes the duty upon the Commission to prevent unnecessary duplication of common carrier service. Section 54-6-5, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, requires that the Commission take into consideration the existing transportation facilities in the territory proposed to be served.

The duty of the Commission on this question is clearly enunciated in *Mulcahy vs. Public Service Commission*, 101 Utah 245, 117 P. 2d. 298 (1941). At page 305 the court states:

" * * * the commission under the statute may and should take into consideration the existing transportation facilities, their investment, the taxes they pay, the services they have rendered and are now rendering; the need of a continuation of such services; the effect upon such services of a new obligation to serve; the effect upon such services of a new competitor in the transportation field; the effect of a new competitor or

carrier upon the economic, industrial, social and intellectual life of the territory, and other matters which may effect the public welfare, and the growth and development of the life in, and resources of the state. * * * existing carriers engaged in transportation to and from a certain field or territory, rendering the service it is permitted or ordered to do, reasonably, adequately and efficiently, is not lightly or ruthlessly to be interfered with, or subjected to needless competition * * *

The Commission must also provide existing carriers with a reasonable degree of protection in the operations they are maintaining. *Lake Shore Motor Coach Lines, Inc. vs. Bennett*, 8 Utah 2d 293, 333 P. 2d 1061 (1958).

It is our position that the Commission failed to abide by the foregoing principles in granting the certificate in this case.

The main thrust of applicant's case and upon which the Commission relied in granting the authority was a mass attempt to discredit the services offered by Wasatch. Barton carefully combed the heavily populated area served by Wasatch to produce shipper witnesses who would complain about its service. This is amply demonstrated by the record which shows that the basic theme of the testimony of every shipper witness Barton called was an elicitation of dissatisfaction with Wasatch operations.

It would be utterly impossible to handle the volume of traffic transported by Wasatch, which in 1958 amounted to 144,881 shipments, without some complaint from the public. Moreover, it is a matter of common knowledge that diligent probing as was done in this case, can readily develop shipper complaint.

In *Lake Shore Motor Coach Lines, Inc. vs. Bennett, supra*, the court points out that in any populated area it is easy enough for an applicant to procure witnesses who will testify that they would like to have more frequent and cheaper service. It is just as easy to procure witnesses to complain as Barton has done in this case. It is our view that such testimony when considered in the light of the volume of shipments handled by Wasatch failed to provide the substance necessary to support the finding of need for additional public service, and that in so doing the Commission acted arbitrarily and capriciously.

The Commission also found that Wasatch's claim experience for the year 1958 indicated a somewhat unsatisfactory or inadequate service (R. 818). This finding was based upon the fact that over 1,000 claims were filed during that year. In doing so, the Commission failed to recognize and evaluate the volume of traffic moved and the relationship between total volume and total claims. It is this relationship which is vital and controlling. The evidence shows that 144,881 shipments were handled in 1958 and 1063 claims were filed. This resulted in a 99.27 per cent claim free record for 1958. Unrefuted evidence showed that this was a satisfactory claim experience. The Commission's finding to the contrary was therefore arbitrary and capricious.

Although Consolidated has been doing business between Salt Lake City and Ogden for many years, it was not until December 12, 1957, that it commenced the performance of intrastate service under the operating rights acquired from Fuller-Toponce. Immediately upon the acquisition of that authority Consolidated commenced an investigation of the method by which said service could best be performed.

Pursuant to such investigation and as a means of improving service, Consolidated constructed a new terminal building at Ogden at a cost of \$186,000. It determined, after an intensive study, that the equipment it had acquired from Fuller-Toponce, was unsuitable for the most expeditious service and, therefore, ordered an entirely new and more versatile replacement fleet. This improvement committed Consolidated to an expenditure of \$310,000. Revenues and expenses for the first year of operation showed a loss of \$95,582. Under these circumstances, the Commission authorized an additional carrier in the field in direct competition with the Wasatch operation without permitting it to place in effect its program for more expeditious service. In so doing, the Commission failed to provide such existing authority a reasonable degree of protection in the operations it was maintaining and improving at considerable expense.

Taking into consideration all of the foregoing facts and circumstances, we believe the Commission failed to regularly pursue its authority and the record as a whole will not support the order duplicating common carrier service in the area involved.

POINT II

IN ISSUING ITS ORDER IN THIS CASE BASED UPON THE RETIREMENT OF BAMBERGER RAILROAD COMPANY, THE COMMISSION ARBITRARILY IGNORED THE ACQUISITION OF BAMBERGER'S INTERESTS BY THE UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD COMPANY.

The Commission placed substantial weight upon the retirement of Bamberger Railroad Company on December 31, 1958, as proof of need for additional motor carrier service between Salt Lake City and Ogden (R. 817, 820). It also recognized that Union Pacific purchased the northern portion of the Bamberger Railroad Company and offered continuing rail service to former Bamberger shippers commencing on January 1, 1959. However, the Commission refused to consider this undisputed evidence in conjunction with the fact of termination, on the ground that Union Pacific acquired no transportation rights from Bamberger (R. 816).

It is conceded that Union Pacific has no vested right to serve shippers formerly using Bamberger facilities. They may ship by any carrier they please. However, Union Pacific stood ready, willing and able to handle any traffic so tendered without depriving those shippers of a single day of service. It is not a question of transportation rights but whether a void in service to the public was created by Bamberger's retirement. At considerable expense Union Pacific maintained existing rail facilities to the entire area with no loss of service resulting. Thus there was no need for an additional motor carrier to handle the freight of Bamberger's shippers, and there is no evidence in the file showing that Union Pacific could not handle any freight tendered by said shippers.

In addition to providing a rail service similar in nature to that which Bamberger had offered, Union Pacific also had in operation an improved supplemental and coordinated service over the highways in the area involved, under the Motor Freight's authority. The Commission also refused to consider

this undisputed fact in conjunction with Bamberger's termination, on the ground that it was solely a rail service which had no effect upon the adequacy or inadequacy of highway motor transportation service between Salt Lake City and Ogden (R. 816, 817). The Commission then stated that this fact justified the conclusion that traffic formerly handled by Bamberger required additional motor carrier service (R. 817).

From this statement of the Commission and the record (R. 820), it appears that it is under the impression Bamberger was engaged in highway transportation of property. This, of course, is not the fact; Bamberger was exclusively in rail transportation. Thus, assuming the Commission is correct in its view concerning the nature of the Motor Freight's authority as being strictly a rail service, such a fact was of substantial importance in determining the question of whether the retirement of Bamberger affected the adequacy or inadequacy of rail transportation service to the public.

Regardless of the nature of the Motor Freight authority, the Commission was not entitled to disregard it in making its determination of need for additional common carrier service. Certainly this is so where such service is an improvement in the transportation methods of an operating carrier and thus is a vital element in considering public convenience and necessity. *Milne Truck Line, Inc. vs. Public Service Commission*, Utah 2d, 337 P.2d 412 (1959).

In disregarding Union Pacific's acquisition of the Bamberger Railroad Company with its continuing and improved service which was available to former Bamberger shippers, the Commission acted in an arbitrary and capricious manner.

It is not vested with power to arbitrarily disregard or disbelieve uncontradicted, competent, credible evidence. *Lake Shore Motor Coach Lines, Inc. vs. Welling, supra*; *Jones vs. California Packing Co.*, 121 Utah 612, 244 P. 2d 640 (1952); *Los Angeles & Salt Lake Railroad Company vs. Public Utilities Commission*, 81 Utah 286; 17 P.2d 287 (1932).

CONCLUSION

Based upon Commission error adduced in the foregoing argument, Petitioners urge that the order dated April 16, 1959, be set aside.