1963

Union Pacific Railroad Co et al v. Public Service Commission of Utah et al : Brief of Defendants and Respondents

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF FACTS

This case arose upon the following facts:

For years prior to December 31, 1958, Barton Truck Line, Inc. had operated as a common motor carrier basical-

ly of general commodities with certain exceptions. The specific points of service and the commodities excepted are more fully set out in Exhibit 1 found on page 714 of the transcript of record.

Generally defendant's authority originally provided that it could haul between Salt Lake and Tooele and certain other points in Tooele County. In 1955, defendant purchased a portion of the operating authority of Interstate Motor Lines, Inc. which were then transferred to defendant by order of the Public Service Commission of Utah. These subsequently acquired rights added to defendant's authority the right to haul general commodities between Ogden and Salt Lake City and intermediate points on the one hand and points west of Grantsville to and including Wendover on the other hand. It specifically included Hill Field and adjacent military projects near Ogden Arsenal and Wendover Bombing Range as off route points to be served. These authorities are not in dispute. Local service between Salt Lake City and Ogden and intermediate points was specifically excluded.

On December 31, 1958, defendant filed with the Public Service Commission of Utah an application proposing to haul between Salt Lake City and Ogden and intermediate points the same commodities as previously it was authorized, so as to allow defendant to render local service between such points. At the hearing, defendant amended its application to exclude certain commodities not here material.

Defendant's application was opposed by Union Pacific Railroad Company, Union Pacific Motor Freight Company, Consolidated Freightways, Inc., Carbon Motorways,

Inc., Salt Lake Transfer Co., Ashworth Transfer, Inc., and Wycoff Co., Inc. which will be referred to herein both collectively and singly as "plaintiffs" or "plaintiff".

At the hearing defendant produced 17 shipper witnesses and one witness from an interline carrier who testified as to the character of service being rendered by the carriers (principally Union Pacific and Consolidated) presently in the area. The shipper witnesses represented a cross section of business in the area in question, including manufacturing, construction, wholesale and retail businesses handling various commodities, constituting both shippers and receivers having business locations in both Salt Lake, Ogden, and intermediate points as follows: Bountiful, Centerville, Clearfield, Syracuse and Roy. One witness was also produced from Delta, who testified in conjunction with the witness from an interline carrier.

Uniformly these witnesses expressed dissatisfaction with the service being rendered in the area involved herein. *None of the witnesses expressed a desire for lower rates.* One complained of excessive damage to items being shipped by Consolidated Freightways, Inc. The main complaint seemed to be related to delays of various types in shipments. Some were delays which inconvenienced the shippers such as waiting until the shipper's closing time to pick up shipments, requiring the shippers to pay employees time and a half for overtime to stay while the shipments were being loaded (R. 119, 246). Others were delays which inconvenienced customers in that deliveries were delayed sometimes for several days (R. 103, 111, 281-2). Numerous other types of inconvenience were put in evidence, some of which motivated the shippers to purchase delivery equipment of their own rather than rely

on the public transportation services being rendered by existing carriers (R. 81, 99, 111, 222, 294-5, 383). Some shippers had experienced such unsatisfactory service from the existing carriers that their customers began refusing to ship by Consolidated (R. 106). The nature of the various complaints will be more fully covered later.

Some of the plaintiffs produced from one to three witnesses each, who were officers or employees of the plaintiff companies, and who testified concerning their financial structure, equipment schedules, and generally as to their shipping schedules.

After hearing all the evidence the Commission made findings of facts which when generally summarized indicate that defendant is financially able and has the facilities to perform the service applied for, that by reason of defendant's former certificates its application did not involve a new or additional area of service, but rather a broadening of former authority to include local service in an area already being served by defendant, that the withdrawal of Bamberger Railroad from the highway transportation field together with the numerous and excessive complaints against the service rendered by Wasatch (herein referred to as Consolidated) indicated that there is traffic formerly handled by Bamberger in excess of that which other carriers handled, and that the increase of population and probable business in the Salt Lake-Ogden Area persuaded the Commission that the public interest necessitated additional motor carrier service in the area and that public convenience and necessity justify the issuance of the authority applied for by defendant. Accordingly, the Commission concluded the application should be granted,

and ordered that a certificate of convenience and necessity be issued to defendant according to its application.

All plaintiffs filed motions for a rehearing, which after due consideration were denied by the Commission, and this appeal ensued.

STATEMENT OF POINTS

POINT I

THE GRANTING OF THE CERTIFICATE OF CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY IN ACCORDANCE WITH DEFENDANT'S APPLICATION WAS NOT ARBITRARY OR CAPRICIOUS, BUT WAS WITHIN THE PROPER AUTHORITY OF THE COMMISSION.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE GRANTING OF THE CERTIFICATE OF CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY IN ACCORDANCE WITH DEFENDANT'S APPLICATION WAS NOT ARBITRARY OR CAPRICIOUS, BUT WAS WITHIN THE PROPER AUTHORITY OF THE COMMISSION.

There is really only one point in issue between the parties here. That is whether the Public Service Commission acting arbitrarily in granting defendant's application. Because the contentions of the various plaintiffs are somewhat different defendant's argument will be subdivided to meet each of them.

(A) *As to Salt Lake Transfer Co. and Ashworth Transfer, Inc.:*

These two plaintiffs apparently do not feel that the action of the Commission in granting defendant's application was improper. Their arguments are limited to the point that the Commission should have excluded explosives from the commodities which defendant should be allowed to handle under the authority granted.

Their arguments seem to fall into two main categories. The first seems to set forth some idea of estoppel. The reasoning runs somewhat as follows (see p. 14 of plaintiff's brief):

1. Salt Lake Transfer and Ashworth both have specific authority to transport explosives.

2. Both companies announced their opposition to the transportation of explosives by defendant.

3. Defendant reassured plaintiffs at the inception of the hearing it would produce witnesses to testify as to explosives.

4. Plaintiffs remained at hearing waiting for such witness to appear.

5. Plaintiffs made a motion for dismissal as to explosives.

6. Plaintiffs then presented evidence which showed there was "no need whatever" for the requested authority as to explosives.

The second type of argument advanced by plaintiffs is that there is "not one scintilla of shipper evidence for movement of explosives" in the record.

These arguments will be answered in the same order.

As to the argument set forth first above, defendant submits that there is no legal justification for such argument, particularly since it does not accurately summarize the record. Nowhere in the record did defendant or counsel for defendant "reassure" plaintiff that it would produce witnesses to testify as to explosives. The alleged reassurance occurred in the opening remarks of defendant's counsel, and are found on pages 6-9 of the record. It will be noted that defendant's counsel amended the application to exclude commodities (including commodities in bulk) requiring special equipment and household goods. Respecting explosives, the following occurred:

"MR. TUFT: Now explosives, I think that — may I ask Mr. Pugsley, I think your company does not publish rates on less than 50 pound shipments.

MR. PUGSLEY: They have authority without restrictions, but they have tariff minimums.

"MR TUFT: Of what?

MR. PUGSLEY: I am not just sure what that is.

MR. TUFT: It will be our feeling that we will contend for explosives on these smaller shipments, on dynamite, or for any large shipments. I think we will have to have that because I think it is a necessary service between these points.

COM. BUDGE: You say on the larger shipments . . .

MR. TUFT: We want explosives, and will contend for them" (R. 7-8).

Nowhere in the foregoing was any promise made to

produce any witness with respect to explosives. The fact that plaintiffs remained at the hearing waiting for a witness to appear whether in reliance on a promise of counsel or not and thereafter made a motion to dismiss should have no bearing on the propriety of the Commission's findings or order.

In its second type of argument plaintiffs claim that there is no shipper evidence in the record to justify the Commission's refusal to exclude explosives from commodities defendant is allowed to transport.

It is true defendant produced no shipper testimony demonstrating a need for the transportation of explosives. However, this does not mean that the record does not contain evidence which justifies the Commission's order.

Defendant applied for authority to transport the same commodities it was previously authorized to transport under its certificate No. 1127 (R. 800). There can be no serious contention that this did not include explosives. Certificate Number 1127 is set out in Exhibit 1 at R. 714, and gives defendant authority to transport general commodities, except livestock to the points mentioned herein. On page 17 of their brief, even plaintiffs apparently concede that defendant's former authority permitted the transporting of explosives.

By this application defendant did not seek to transport any different type of commodities than those it could transport formerly. Neither did defendant seek to serve any new area or territory. It merely sought to render a local service in an area it was already serving and as to commodities already being transported. Accordingly, defend-

ant submits that there was evidence before the Commission to justify defendant's right to transport explosives.

Plaintiff has complained of the lack of shipper evidence in the record with respect to explosives. Yet plaintiffs produced no shipper witnesses either, but only an officer from each of the plaintiff companies. Mr. Sims, of Salt Lake Transfer Co., admitted that they have a minimum of 8,000 pounds or more (R. 555). Mr. Ashworth, vice president of Ashworth Transfer testified that his company's lowest minimum is 4,000 pounds on explosives (R. 573).

In view of the limitations upon the service rendered by these two plaintiffs and in view of the existing authority of defendant to transport explosives between the Ogden-Hill Field area and the Tooele County area west of Grantsville, it is difficult to understand how the refusal of the Commission to exclude explosives from defendant's application could be characterized as arbitrary and capricious.

In their brief plaintiffs complain that by reason of the local service defendant was granted between Salt Lake and Ogden, defendant can now service points in Tooele County east of Grantsville from points of origin in Davis and Weber Counties, and similarly can transport commodities in the reverse direction without interlining with Wasatch Fast Freight (herein referred to as Consolidated) neither of which defendant could formerly do. It is correct that the grant of authority between Salt Lake and Ogden has this effect, as was pointed out at the hearing and in the Commission's findings of fact (R. 52-4, §20). However, this is a benefit which is merely incidental to the authority granted herein and arises only because of the former authority held by defendant.

Furthermore, although the interline carrier, Consolidated, is a party to this appeal, its brief discloses no complaint of the nature asserted by plaintiffs, e.g. that it will lose interline business it formerly handled with defendant with respect to explosives or any other commodity (for the same considerations apply not just to explosives, but to all commodities handled by defendant).

(B) *As to Union Pacific Railroad Company and Union Pacific Motor Freight Company:*

Although Union Pacific Motor Freight Company (hereinafter referred to as "Motor Freight") has joined in this appeal, it would seem that it has no transportation rights independent of the rights granted to Union Pacific Railroad Company (hereinafter referred to as "Union Pacific"). Such seems to be the holding of this court in the case of *Milne Truck Lines v. Public Service Commission of Utah*, 9 U(2d) 28, 337 P(2d) 412 (1959), which interpreted the rights granted Motor Freight.

In that case the court pointed out that the entry into the public transportation field by Motor Freight would not increase competition as to other motor carriers "for the reason that the service applicant [Motor Freight] seeks to render is now rendered by Union Pacific Railroad Company, and the proposed service will be auxiliary and supplemental to the rail service of the said railroad." The reason for the grant of authority was to release badly needed box cars for other service by moving l.c.l. shipments by truck. However, all shipments thus handled move at rail rates, on rail billing, and between rail stations.

In effect Motor Freight is servicing the convenience

and necessity of Union Pacific rather than that of the public. As the court put it:

"As we view the matter Motor Freight will not be competing with plaintiffs. It renders a service which plaintiffs could not perform if Motor Freight did not perform it."

The finding of the Commission in this respect was consistent with the holding above of this court (R. 816-17).

Plaintiffs argue (on page 13 of their brief):

"It is not a question of transportation rights but whether a void in service to the public was created by Bamberger's retirement. At considerable expense Union Pacific maintained existing rail facilities to the entire area *with no loss of service resulting*. Thus there was no need for an additional motor carrier to handle the freight of Bamberger's shippers, and there is no evidence in the file showing that Union Pacific could not handle any freight tendered by said shippers. (Emphasis added.)

Defendant agrees that the primary question presented is not of existing rights but of service to the public. However, it should be obvious that no public carrier is able legally to render any service except in accordance with the rights granted it by the proper authorities. In this respect it should be pointed out that Union Pacific, while acquiring some of the property of Bamberger in the Ogden to Clearfield area, did not succeed to any of the transportation rights exercised by Bamberger.

Furthermore, the evidence does not sustain Union Pacific's claim that it has maintained existing rail facili-

ties to the entire area "with no loss of service resulting" or that its "improved service was available to former Bamberger shippers." Many of the shipper witnesses testified that they had used Bamberger's services before it went out of business. (R. 160-1, 168, 256, 280, 315, 438). However, most of these witnesses and many others testified they were not aware of or were not familiar with the trucking service being performed in the area by Motor Freight (123-4, 143, 161, 180, 207, 233, 250, 268, 328, 390, 439). Much might be explained by the testimony of many of the witnesses that Union Pacific or Motor Freight did not solicit their business (R. 110, 143, 161, 251, 332).

At least two witnesses complained of delays in the service being rendered by Union Pacific (R. 180, 367-8). The latter witness, though out of the area involved herein was concerned with interline shipments from the area concerned. He testified that the normal shipping time from Ogden to Delta by rail was 7 to 10 days, as compared with next day service by motor carrier from Salt Lake. (R. 366-8.)

With respect to the shipper witnesses produced by applicant from points intermediate to Salt Lake and Ogden, Union Pacific did not even question them at all, except to ask one such witness his exact business address (R. 285).

In view of the foregoing, it is submitted that the Commission did not arbitrarily or capriciously ignore the rights or service of Union Pacific or its adjunct Motor Freight whether considered from the standpoint of either rail or highway transportation. It is further submitted that the finding of the Commission that the retirement of Bamber-

ger from the field of public transportation left a void in the service rendered to the public is properly supported by the evidence.

(C) *As To Consolidated Freightways:*

In view of the testimony presented at the hearing the arguments of Consolidated are interesting and unusual to say the least. They are approximately as follows:

1. The decision of the Commission failed to provide existing carriers with a "reasonable degree of protection" in that it "*unnecessarily*" duplicated common carrier service for the area involved. (Emphasis added.)

2. Defendant diligently combed a populated area to find witnesses to testify they would like more frequent and cheaper service; that in view of the volume of shipments handled by Consolidated such witnesses "failed to provide the substance necessary to support the finding of need for additional public service."

3. Unrefuted evidence showed Consolidated's claim experience was satisfactory and the Commission's finding to the contrary was arbitrary and capricious.

4. At a time when Consolidated had experienced a loss of \$95,582, it constructed a new terminal at a cost of \$186,000 and committed itself to an additional expenditure of \$310,000 for new equipment and the Commission by allowing a competitor to come in failed to protect Consolidated in its operations.

The first two arguments will be considered together.

The case of *Mulcahy v. Public Service Commission*, 101 Utah 245, 117 P (2d) 298 is of particular interest because of its factual similarity to the present case and

the wide range of legal considerations it announces which should control this case.

In that case, Fuller-Toponce Trucking Co. (the predecessor of Consolidated) applied for highway transportation authority between Salt Lake and Logan. The application was opposed by Union Pacific Railroad as well as the other established carriers (both rail and highway) in the area. The Commission found that public convenience and necessity required the issuance of a certificate to the applicant. The receiver of one of the protestants appealed. Among other things it was alleged that there was no showing in the evidence of convenience and necessity. The court set forth the standards for judicial review of a finding of convenience and necessity as follows:

"It is not required that the facts found by the Commission be conclusively established, nor even that they be shown by a preponderance of the evidence. *If there is in the record competent evidence from which a reasonable mind could believe or conclude that a certain fact existed, a finding of such fact finds justification in the evidence, and we cannot disturb it.*

"There is vested in the Public Service Commission, by the law of its creation and existence, the right and power to issue certificates of convenience and necessity for motor transport service as common carriers when it 'finds from the evidence that the public convenience and necessity require the proposed service.' What should be pursued, or what conclusions should be drawn from disputed facts is not a law question for the judiciary to decide. Such questions must be determined by the person or body whose action depends upon the determination thereof. But the question as to

whether there is competent evidence to justify the action taken, or to be taken, is a legal question. . . .

* * * * *

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